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Enter Sandman

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday October 14, 2024
Writer: Gina Lucita Monreal, David J. North
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Julian Black Antelope (Doctor Témet Téngalkat), Bobby
Moynihan (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Lori Petty (Dr. Lenora Fried-
man), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwa’la), Sully Diaz (Maria
Perez), Jared Bankens (Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd), Derek Smith (Staff
Sergeant Kevin Maloney), Freedom Bridgewater (Sheriff Pete), Dani J.
Scott (Shannon Gibbs), Adele Abinante (Kelly Gibbs), Jeannie Bolet
(Angela Tan), Ashley Dulaney (Jessica Maloney), Ben Whitehair (Billy),
Daniel Roebuck (Artie), Marisa Baram (Gail Price), Aaron Wilton (JJ),
Eric Normington (Roger), Matthew Henerson (Carl), Michael Shepperd
(Smitty), Dollar Tan (Sam), Joe Corzo (MP #1), Micah Linderman (Ma-
rine 1), Eddie Alfano (Bouncer Todd), Mark Harmon (Narrator)

Summary: Gibbs starts his career as a newly minted special agent at the fledgling
NCIS Camp Pendleton office, where he forges his place on a gritty rag-
tag team led by NCIS legend Mike Franks.

Gibbs starts his career as a newly minted
special agent at the fledgling NCIS Camp
Pendleton office, where he forges his
place on a gritty ragtag team led by NCIS
legend Mike Franks.
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Enter Sandman, Part 2

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday October 14, 2024
Writer: Gina Lucita Monreal, David J. North
Director: Niels Arden Oplev
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Julian Black Antelope (Doctor Témet Téngalkat), Bobby
Moynihan (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Michael Harney (Kowalski),
Daniel Bellomy (Special Agent Granville Dawson), Sully Diaz (Maria
Perez), Jared Bankens (Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd), Robert Taylor (Jackson
Gibbs), Dani J. Scott (Shannon Gibbs), Adele Abinante (Kelly Gibbs),
Daniel Roebuck (Artie), Raechel Wong (Nadine Taylor), Betzaida Landín
(Melanie Hewitt), Ted Jonas (Lead FBI Agent), Rueben Grundy (NIS
Agent #1), Rey Goyos (Reporter #1), Cheryl Tsai (Reporter #2), Shireen
Crutchfield (Reporter #3), Jordyn Rax (Girlfriend)

Summary: Gibbs and the team continue their investigation.

Gibbs and the team continue their inves-
tigation.
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Bend, Don’t Break

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday October 21, 2024
Writer: Jon Worley
Director: John Terlesky
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Bobby Moynihan
(Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Michael Harney (Kowalski), Daniel Bel-
lomy (Special Agent Granville Dawson), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal
’Tish’ Kwá’la), Richard Blackmon (Danny Prado), Richie Merritt (Em-
mett Sawyer), Ely Henry (NIS Junior Chemist Philip Elertson), Robert
Taylor (Jackson Gibbs), Dani J. Scott (Shannon Gibbs), Lincoln A.
Castellanos (Juan the Manager), Joe Alvarez (Carlsbad Cop), Teddy
Day (Friend)

Summary: A murder near Camp Pendleton leads Gibbs and the team to a subur-
ban mall in San Diego, where Gibbs takes matters into his own hands.
Jackson Gibbs pays Franks an unexpected visit.

NCIS Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs
didn’t always have it together. He once
failed his psyche eval. He had just lost
his wife and daughter.

He wasn’t in a good place mentally. He
was struggling with everyday life and so
he was lucky that Franks took him on.
Franks saw something in him. He saw his
potential. He also knew that the job was
all Gibbs had. He knew that the young
Marine was never going to go back to
civilian life after everything he suffered.
He gave him a purpose and it helped

Gibbs heal.
Franks could be a great boss at times. He was even willing to apologize to Lala for his earlier

comments. He should never have suggested she sleep with Gibbs to get over her issues with him.
It was out of line. Franks came to see that with the help of a good woman and he apologized to
Lala tonight.

It wasn’t a great apology, but she still accepted it. They had bigger things to worry about. The
body of Emmett Sawyer was found on base. It looked like he was dumped there after he was
murdered.

Emmett was a civilian. He was dragged then dumped. There were traces of drugs found near
the body. NCIS took on the case because there was a chance that a serviceman or woman killed
him.

Yet, Dr. Tango took forever to get to the scene. He went out surfing earlier that day. This was
before cell phones and so Tango will get to them when he gets to them. Franks in the meantime
had to deal with Gibb’s dad. Jackson was back in town. He was worried about his son. He didn’t
think Gibbs should be NCIS.
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Jackson was also still upset that Franks let his granddaughter’s killer get away. The guy
escaped to Mexico. They couldn’t get him back or take him to trial for the murders. Jackson
blamed Franks for that.

He warned Franks that giving Gibbs a job doesn’t change what happened. Nor does it fix his
son. His son has a death wish. Him working in NCIS was just going to give him more opportunities
to hurt himself. Jackson begged Franks to fire Gibbs. He begged him. He said his son needed to
heal and Franks took time to think about that.

Franks didn’t fire Gibbs. He instead had him and the rest of the unit look into drugs on the
base. Several Petty Officers were arrested the other day because they were caught with drugs.
They would buy up the empty toy eggshells. They would fill them with drugs and sell them on
base.

They did it at the local mall. NCIS found a drug dealer getting his cash and he chased him
before arresting him. His name was Dougie. Dougie worked with Emmett. They sold to military
personnel. Dougie was also the last person to officially have seen Emmett alive.

Dougie said that he saw Emmett’s killer. He said it was the mothman. The mothman was
allegedly an omen for evil. Whenever you see it, people in your life will start dying.

Dougie claimed he was so afraid of his mythical creature that he ran off leaving Emmett alone
to face it. The creature had wings. It had red eyes. It was a huge shadow figure. Dougie wasn’t
making much sense. Franks actually laughed at the description of the mothman. He came to
believe that Dougie was covering up for his boss. He thought the boss operated within the mall.

Their assumptions weren’t that far off because several stores in the mall got robbed. The chief
suspect was head of security. NCIS didn’t have enough evidence to arrest the guy. They were told
to let him walk when Gibbs disobeyed the order. Franks talked to Gibbs. He told him he had him
in the field too soon.

He was going to bench Gibbs. Gibbs didn’t like that. He lashed out at his father. He also
trapped himself in the elevator with the head of mall security. The guy’s name was Prado. Gibbs
had nothing to lose at that point and so he threatened to keep imprisoning Pardo until he con-
fessed.

It somewhat worked. Prado had nothing to do with Emmett’s death. He was nowhere near the
area. Gibbs was trying to figure out who was involved when Franks shows up at the mall.

The others tried to buy him time. They sent Franks on a wild goose chase. The guy realized
what they were doing and went to the mall. He then threw a rock at the elevator. Forcing Gibbs to
get it working again. Prado could have walked and he didn’t because the rest of NCIS connected
him to a gun smuggling ring while he was in the elevator.

Prado and his friends were hiding real guns inside of toy guys. Its why they kept stealing from
the toy store in the mall. Only Gibbs felt for sure that Prado wasn’t involved in Emmett’s death.

He got a good read of him in the elevator. Gibbs was still in trouble, but he did convince
Franks that Emmett’s killer was still out there. Prado wasn’t even that bad of a guy. He was
smuggling guns into third world countries that were going through a civil war. He knew that the
American government would be focusing on giving a dictator power. And no one thought about
the dissidents.

Emmett was killed by accident. One of the guys doing good accidentally hit him with the car.
They then tried to cover it up and so Gibbs’s instincts were right. It also showed Franks that
Gibbs was needed out in the field.

Gibbs told his father to go home and Jackson left after working out the insurance policy for
his son.
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All’s Not Lost

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday October 28, 2024
Writer: Michael J. Ballin, Thomas Aguilar
Director: Hanelle M. Culpepper
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Julian Black Antelope (Doctor Témet Téngalkat), Bobby
Moynihan (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Daniel Bellomy (Special Agent
Granville Dawson), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la), Ely
Henry (NIS Junior Chemist Philip Elertson), Hattie Hoskins (Mildred
Jones), Brent Sexton (Jim Miller), Miles Anderson (Mr. Hatcher), Rafael
Castillo (Black Kenny), John Churchill (Deputy Sheriff Robert Morris),
Marisa Baram (Gail Price), Matthew Henerson (Carl Loughlin), Adele
Abinante (Kelly Gibbs), Betsy Moore (Sarah Walsh), Robb Zbacnik
(Marine Captain Robinson), Christopher Guyton (George Ely), Javon
Anderson (Marine Staff Sergeant Derek Jones), William Kaffenberger
(Poker Player with Bolo Tie)

Summary: Still grieving the loss of his wife and daughter, Gibbs helps the team
work a case involving a missing girl; the moment that irrevocably
changed Gibbs’ life is revealed.

Gibbs’s deployments weren’t always easy,
but it helped that he used to receives
messages from his family. Shannon and
Kelly used to write him every week when
he was deployed. Some letters offered de-
tails while others were written just to tell
him how much they love him.

Those letters stopped after their death.
Gibbs gave up his career in the Marines.
He went back stateside and he was still
getting used to the silence when he
caught a rough case. It was the first of its
kind for him as an NCIS Agent. His team

were brought in because Staff Sergeant Derek Jones’s girlfriend was murdered. And the killer
kidnapped the marine’s daughter, Mildred Jones.

The girlfriend was a schoolteacher. She didn’t have a record. She didn’t even seem to have
enemies. Brianna Davis was a good person and she became collateral damage when a kidnapper
took Mildred.

There was evidence Mildred was the real target all along. The little girl tried to hide during
the initial break-in. She hid in a lower cabinet when she was found and taken. She wasn’t killed
right away. She was instead spotted in the backseat of a car driving out of the neighborhood. Or
at least that’s what the neighbor Jim claimed.

Everyone believed Jim. They tracked down the car matching his description. It was heading
towards the Mexican’s border. It made everyone panic until they realized that Jim’s story kept
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changing throughout the whole day. The whole neighborhood came out to assist with finding
Mildred.

This included Jim. Jim kept making himself out to be more important than he was to anyone
willing to listen. Franks eventually threatened him with violence and that’s when Jim said he
never saw a car or Mildred that night. He just wanted to be a part of the moment.

Franks had to go back to the neighborhood. This time he brought hunting dogs. They gave
the dogs something of Mildred to sniff and the dogs led them to Mildred. Mildred was hiding in
the woods.

She was hiding from Briana’s killer. She wasn’t really talking. Franks didn’t want to push
her at first. Nor did he was to immediately alert Children Protective Service. They didn’t want
Briana’s killer to know that they found Mildred alive and so they went ahead with putting her
face on a milk carton to buy Mildred some time.

They couldn’t get into contact with her father. He still doesn’t know what happened. The team
in the meantime didn’t want the little girl to get lost in the system. They kept her at the office
until she felt comfortable enough to open up to Lala. Mildred saw the man that killed Briana.
Briana was in fact the actual target. They saw the evidence through the lens of a missing child
and that’s why they failed to see that Briana was the target all along. Mildred was supposed to
have gone to school. She was feeling tired that day. Briana allowed her to sleep in because she
herself had the day off.

When the killer went to that house, he thought Briana was home alone. He didn’t know that
Mildred saw him or that she witnessed the murder. Mildred ran off to hide in the woods because
that’s what her father told her to do. He told her to run if she was in danger. She ran off and that
probably saved her life. She started opening up the longer she was with NCIS. She still wouldn’t
describe the man she saw and Gibbs decided to talk to her himself. Franks was worried this case
could traumatize Gibbs all over again. He had him running around the city only Gibbs knows
how to relate to little girls.

Gibbs knows the comic books that Mildred talks about. He can sing her favorite Whitney
Houston song. He sang it with her while she came up with a description of what the killer looked
like. Gibbs was really good with her and he needed to go home early after talking to her. It did
traumatize him. He tried to pretend it didn’t when it did. Franks allowed him to leave early.
Mildred was going home with Mary Jo for the night. Mildred’s father had finally been contacted
and he was flying home on the first flight back.

NCIS now had a description of the killer. They also matched their murder weapon to a second
crime scene. Someone used that gun to carry out a hit on a guy involved in organized crime.
Franks contacted a criminal informant known as Black Kenny because that’s his guy for that
kind of stuff. He tracked down the CI at an underground gambling ring. Black Kenny saw the
photo of the killer. He gave Franks a name. He said the guy they were looking for goes by the
name "Hatcher". Hatcher was known for being a fixer.

NCIS went to Hatcher’s home. They ran into his father. His father said that Hatcher knows
Mildred was still alive and that she saw his face. He went to go kill her. NCIS was too late to warn
Mary Jo. Thankfully, Gibbs had stopped by her house. His daughter owned a rare toy that was
hard to track down. He brought the toy to Mary Jo’s because he figured Mildred would like it.
Gibbs was about to leave when he heard screams. Mary Jo had stabbed the assailant and still
the guy didn’t stayed down. Gibbs had to fight him and he soon killed Hatcher.

It happened in front of Mildred, but she was going to be fine. She later got to go home with
her dad. The bigger concern for everyone was how Hatcher knew they found Mildred. Hatcher’s
father was questioned and he didn’t know how his son got the information. What he did know
was why he killed Briana. Briana was teaching science. She took samples from a nearby lake
and she noticed it was contaminated. The dairy company was dumbing chemicals into the lake
because it would have been too expensive to get rid of it safely. And so that’s why Briana had to
die.

The woman that operated the company was also a part of the search party looking for Briana.
She knew when Briana was found and she passed it along to the hitman. The company will now
face charges for the dumping. The owner will now face first degree murder charges for the hit she
put out on Briana.

And once Gibbs saw Mildred safely in her father’s arms, he decided to finally take up Franks’s
offer of dinner at his place.
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Last Rites

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday November 04, 2024
Writer: Margarita Matthews
Director: Lionel Coleman
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Julian Black Antelope (Doctor Témet Téngalkat),
Michael Harney (Kowalski), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la),
Christopher Redman (Albert Hope), Kelly Albanese (Julie Larsen),
Hahn Cho (Doctor Lin), Jesse Medeles (Arturo), Robert Taylor (Jack-
son Gibbs), Jeannie Bolet (Angela Tan), Patrick Day (Kirk), Beckett
Blomberg (Boy Gibbs), Makela Yepez (Angel), Jonima Diaby (Connor),
Greg Yoder (Execution Team Leader), Tim Neff (U.S. Marshal #1), Ross
Scharphorn (NIS Agent #1)

Summary: With the countdown on to an execution, Franks races to extricate
the location of a missing body from a death row inmate and honor
a promise he made to the victim’s sister before time runs out.

Jethro Gibbs had a death wish for a
while. It started the moment he heard
about his family. He was told his wife
and daughter had been killed. He was
deployed at the time. No one expected
him to be battle ready anytime soon, but
Gibbs ran into the action.

He didn’t try to save anyone. He didn’t
try to keep himself alive. He ran into the
action because he wanted to be killed. He
got pretty banged up after doing that. H

e had to rehabilitate back stateside
where his father took over his care. His

dad did everything to keep him alive. The one thing he couldn’t do was give Gibbs a reason to
live. And so the job offer from NCIS did what Jackson couldn’t do, it gave Gibbs a reason to fight.

Gibbs was now helping people. NCIS gave people justice. Its why this latest case meant so
much. NCIS were brought in on an old murder investigation. The killer was Albert Hope. He was
a professor of Theology. He killed his wife and her lover when he returned home early one day.

Franks worked this case alone at the time. He managed to get a confession out of Hope. Hope
even gave Franks the location of one of the graves. His wife’s lover was Captain Jonathan Rice.
His remains were left in a wooded area. He was later buried with respect.

The one thing Hope wouldn’t give was the location of his wife’s body. Ana Larsen was dead.
Hope said as much. He just wouldn’t allow anyone to see her or bury her.

Franks believed that Hope loved holding onto that information because he has a god complex.
He likes being in control. It’s been years since Franks worked the case and he never got Hope to
give so much as a hint on where Ana’s body was located. It haunts Franks that he couldn’t give
the family closure. He’s been drinking a lot the closer they get to Hope’s execution.
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The state was going to execute Hope for the double homicide. If he dies before he revealing
where Ana’s body was, the truth dies with him. They all knew that they were running out of time.
Hope used that against them. He toyed with them. He reached out to Ana’s sister. He claimed
that he wanted to talk and heal.

Franks knew that was a load of crap. He advised Julie not to meet Hope. Hope couldn’t be
trusted. He was only dangling information now to buy himself time. Franks knew that and he
still had to play Hope’s game.

Franks’s usual means of doing things didn’t work before. He wasn’t even allowed to be with
Hope unsupervised because he once tried to beat the information out of the man. Anyways,
things were different now. Franks has his own team. They were all willing to look through the
case files with him.

Gibbs looked at everything trying to help. Rando read Hope’s books. It was giving them nothing
new to work with and so Franks made a deal with the devil. Franks got Hope to tell them where
Ana’s body was in exchange for him getting forgiveness from Julie the sister.

Hope led NCIS into the desert. Their radios didn’t work out there. Gibbs got sidetracked when
two Latinos drove close to the scene and he racially profiled them.

He drew a gun on them when they tried to get their license from the glove compartment.
Lala stopped Gibbs for shooting two unarmed men. The guys drove off. Gibbs and Lala went
back to securing the scene. Hope came through. He led them to Ana’s body. He waited to speak
to Julie and that’s when Franks double-crossed him. Franks was never going to give Hope the
opportunity to talk to Julie.

Franks knows that Hope doesn’t deserve forgiveness. He wrote a book asking for it and yet he
must have known he didn’t deserve it. He only wanted to talk to Julie because she and Ana were
twins. He wanted to treat himself to her pain just a little longer. Franks denied him that. Lala
also spoke to Gibbs.

She couldn’t keep covering for him. This goes double after his last eval. She had the situation
handled. He shouldn’t have overreacted. She now has to report him to Franks and Franks wasn’t
in the mood to hear it.

Hope played him. The body they found wasn’t Ana’s. It belonged to a good Samaritan. The guy
was on a road trip when he saw Hope’s car on the side of the road and he offered to help him
with his car. Hope stopped there because he was getting rid of the body. He was afraid the other
guy would see too much.

He killed him and no one connected him to the man’s disappearance until now. Ana’s remains
were still out there. Franks was tired of the back and forth. He finally let Julie speak to Hope.
And Hope proved once again to be a horrible person.

It was Julie that drove Ana to the bar where she met her lover. Hope asked to meet Julie not
because he wanted absolution. He wanted her to seek absolution from him. He said she’s the
reason her sister is dead. Franks tried to attack him after that. The bars on Hope’s cell worked
against him.

Hope was left in a position of power and he wanted everyone to beg him for information on
Ana. He was loving all the attention he was getting. Franks was right when he said Hope had a
god complex. He just didn’t know how to combat it.

Lala meanwhile had a break in the case. She found out that Hope buried his victims according
to their religion. Rice was buried under a cactus that looked like a cross. He was a catholic and
so that fits.

The good Samaritan was buried honoring Muslim customs. They just needed to know what
Ana’s faith was. They called around. They heard that Ana didn’t worship any one faith. Hope
wrote about that in his book and so right before he was executed by the state — Franks visited
him. He finally figured out where Ana was buried.

Hope buried Ana in a vineyard because wine was her god. Hope’s final moments on earth was
him realizing he didn’t win. Ana was found and her sister later buried her with respect. Franks
was able to close a case that’s been haunting him for six years. Tish had even thought he had
an affair with Julie because they were that close.

Franks had to reassure her. He also had to rectify things with Vera Strickland. He cut into
her interview with the big boss. It’s like he didn’t see her. And she said that’s why she couldn’t
work with him anymore.
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And so Franks made up to everyone in his life. He let Tish know she’s the one. He got approval
for Strickland’s program. He also never heard about the incident involving Gibbs. Lala chose to
cover it up.
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Incognito

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday November 11, 2024
Writer: Shalisha Francis-Feusner
Director: Pete Chatmon
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Bobby Moynihan (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), DaJuan
Johnson (FBI Detective Noah Oakley), Lori Petty (Dr. Lenora Fried-
man), Ektor Rivera (Eddie), Jonathan R. Freeman (Baker), Colton
Little (Samuel Rhodes), Lucas Dixon (Younger Tobias Fornell), Vin-
cent Washington (Hodge), Aaron Wilton (JJ), Eric Normington (Roger),
Matthew Henerson (Carl Loughlin), Zachary Margulies (Navy Petty
Ofiicer Third Class Walt Lewis), Juan Sanchez-Molina (Officer #1),
Michael Fitzgerald (Rookie Officer), Sam Myerson (Matt), Ross Fran-
cis (Williams), Vanessa Curry (Hostess), Amanda Rea (Attendant),
Jeremiah Clarke (Bouncer), Trevor Black (Blonde Man)

Summary: Gibbs goes undercover for the first time with Lala as NIS works the
case of a dead Navy seaman who may have been sharing top-secret
intel that poses a threat to national security. Also, Lala struggles with
her place on the team and an unexpected development in her personal
life.

The one thing Franks hated was work-
place distractions. He called Lala that
once. She was upset by that. She hadn’t
told anyone when it first happened, but
much later on she talked about it with
Gibbs.

It could have been months or it could
have been years later. She was still upset
by it. She told Gibbs that it felt like she
had been put in a box and that box was
constantly getting smaller.

She was so upset that she started
lashing out. She was late to a scene. She

had just come back from a bar and Franks gave her lip about wearing lipstick.
Lala had gone out to celebrate Vera’s profiling program that night. She also met a guy. They

made out. She was enjoying herself and that’s why she was late to the scene.
When she did show up, Franks gave her a hard time for being late. Then the lipstick thing.

There was also a problem when Lala dropped a tissue on the ground.
The local cop thought that was evidence. He got into a screaming match with Lala about her

picking it up and Franks had to break it up. Lala was not herself that night. Frank even asked
her what’s wrong.

She wouldn’t say. She acted like nothing happened. Only she was getting tired of the way
she’s treated. She felt singled out. They were called to the home of Petty Officer Second Class
Greg Piccolo because his neighbors complained about the noise.
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The cops showed up and they found Greg’s body. It looked like he committed suicide. The
medical examiner later determined that it was actually homicide. It was now a murder investiga-
tion and still Randy took time to read some of the love letters that the victim got.

They were laughing about what was in those letters when Lala entered the room. Suddenly,
they didn’t feel comfortable discussing the letters and they didn’t want to show them to Lala. She
had to wait to read them. She got copies of them the next day.

She also learned that they believe the love letters were written by a man. This theory was
backed up when someone called the office. Mary Jo was told by an anonymous male caller that
Greg did bad deeds and they should look at where he worked.

Greg was a fire controlman. He controlled a secure room with classified files. No one got
passed him without the proper clearance and, while highly respected, he also kept to himself.
Lala began looking into Greg. She used to do that from the start.

She was starting slow with this case and that could be because of her guilt. Lala cheated on
the man she loves. The guy at the bar was a fling. She never got his name. She never wanted to.
What gutted her was when she returned home to find a great guy that made her breakfast. And
she remembers she betrayed his trust.

It was the others that found out that Greg had a leak in his office. There was a file about a
tomahawk. It was in the wind and NCIS needed to know who wanted to buy the information.
SAC Wheeler got them information on the buyer. The buyer was Sam Rhodes.

He buys information on the black market and it would suck if his name and face was all over
the news talking about him betraying his country. So, Rhodes assisted NCIS with the case. He
told them where the deal was happening.

It was going to be at an underground gambling den. Gibbs was to go undercover. Lala was
told to go with him as his arm candy. Lala was insulted by that. Gibbs tried to tell her that he
could talk to Franks for her, but she didn’t want his help.

Gibbs may think he was different only he was just like the other guys in underestimating
her. Its why he pulled his weapon on unarmed civilians when she told him she could handle the
situation. She still went as his arm candy. She helped Gibbs become Sam Rhodes.

Lala also later saved Gibbs from breaking cover. His dentist was at the secret club. She kept
him hidden from the guy long enough to save his cover. They were then approached by the seller.
Lala pretended to be drunk to make herself seem less like a threat.

She identified the four men in the room. She was buying them time without them knowing
how much they needed it. They didn’t have the fully agreed amount. The FBI left them short by
thirty grand. The FBI also had a case in the area and them making such noise might spoke the
seller. Luckily, Lala managed to get the upper hand in that room.

She gave Gibbs a knife. She stole a gun. She took out one of the bad guy and Gibbs took the
seller prisoner. That’s when backup arrived.

They arrested the men. Gibbs showed he could be trusted with a job like that while Lala had
to hear in the dressing room all the men that really loved her undercover dress. She and Vera
talked about it. She has to be strong. Just not too strong or she’ll be labeled a b*tch. She can’t
wear her tightest pair of pants. She has to make crass jokes when they talk about her. To show
that she’s one of the guys.

Lala faced constant micro-aggressions and so the least she could do was come clean about
making out with a rando.
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One Flew Over

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday November 25, 2024
Writer: Rafael Samano, Margarita Matthews, Gina Lucita Monreal
Director: Jessica Lowrey
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Julian Black Antelope
(Doctor Témet Téngalkat), Daniel Bellomy (Special Agent Granville
Dawson), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la), Lori Petty (Dr.
Lenora Friedman), Phillip Garcia (Spencer ’Lefty’ Hollis), Jeremy
Brandt (Navy Commander Brian Glenn), Hannah Alline (Shana),
Eric Normington (Roger), Aaron Wilton (JJ), Matthew Henerson (Carl
Loughlin), Jeffrey Boehm (NIS Agent Dalton), Marisa Baram (Gail
Price), Larry Leong (Tent Guy), Erika T. Johnson (Maxine), Bries Van-
non (Drifter 1), Claire Montgomery (Alice Glenn)

Summary: NCIS investigates the murder of a dementia-afflicted Jane Doe. Also,
flashbacks reveal the first time Gibbs met Franks.

The worst part about losing his fam-
ily was when he went home to silence.
His wife wasn’t listening to his music.
His daughter wasn’t watching her favorite
show. It was just complete silence.

Gibbs couldn’t go home to face that by
himself and so he got a new place. He’d
rather rent a hole in the wall rather than
return home to an empty house.

He eventually found a place he could
afford. He wasn’t there for long when
Franks came knocking. Franks saw how
defeated Gibbs appeared. He helped him

get a job with NCIS because he knew Gibbs needed something to fight for. And he wasn’t wrong.
The job was the only thing Gibbs had. It would go on to define him. Back in the early days

though, he was still figuring it out. NCIS received a call from a corporal about a bag at the side
of the road.

The bag was a lady’s purse. There was blood on it. The corporal was concerned a woman could
be in danger. He reported what he found and NCIS followed a trail of blood from the road. They
soon found the body of an elderly woman. The coyotes were already sniffing around. Franks had
to scare them off with his gun and NCIS took over the scene.

The victim was called Jane Doe at first. She was found in her nightgown. Even her purse was
full of pictures instead of anything useful. The medical examiner determined that she was in her
early eighties.

There was no missing person matching the victim’s description. It was hours before someone
realized she was missing and came forward. The victim was identified as Alice Glenn.

Her son was in the military. She was living on base with his family. Alice suffered from de-
mentia. She was living by herself until she couldn’t anymore. And she occasionally wanders off
on her own.
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Alice does that every once in a while. Her family didn’t like to report it because her staying
with them was an infraction, but she would always take her wallet with her purse.

Her son’s address was in the wallet. It would help her return home. This wallet wasn’t found
on the victim. She also suffered injuries.

It seems she was killed during a robbery and her body was thrown off the side of the road
after death. If they hadn’t forgotten the purse, there’s no telling if Alice would have ever been
found. The coyotes would have destroyed the evidence.

NCIS investigated the homicide. They checked a local drug den. They figured only someone
desperate would so heinously kill a defenseless grandmother and they weren’t wrong.

The addicts down there said a guy named "Lefty" came covered in blood the other day. He
also had enough to buy more than he normally would. He became their chief suspect. No one
knew Lefty’s real name. Or address. They did know that he was arrested by an MP because he
stole batteries out of cars. NCIS found the officer that arrested him and who let him go with a
warning.

The guy has Lefty’s address.
Franks had Lefty brought in. He questioned him privately. He did so in a room without cam-

eras and Lefty claimed the blood on him was his own. He said he suffered nosebleeds. He also
said he saw something that night. He swears he saw a big black man that night. Only Franks
didn’t believe him.

He was used to hearing about a supposed big black guy did it and so he wrote it off until
a blood test showed that the blood on Lefty really was his. Franks was so angry at himself for
questioning Lefty without cameras. The case would have been ruined if he never told anyone
what Lefty said.

Not that Lefty was telling him everything. He really did make up the black guy only he did
witness the murder. He said he saw a blond woman and he identified her car. It turns out it was
Alice’s daughter-in-law. Alice started getting violent lately. It happens with people suffering from
dementia.

Alice wasn’t remembering her family. She lashed out at them. She was hitting her daughter-
in-law when they got into a fight. Alice was pushed. She fell backwards and she hit her head. It
was an accident. The part about dumping her body and getting rid of her wallet to make it look
like a robbery was not in fact an accident.

NCIS found their killer. It was up to the jury to decide what happens to her. Other than that,
the case was officially closed. Gibbs used his free time to help a bird.

The bird flew in the wall in Gibb’s apartment and Gibbs nursed it back to health. He built a
bird house for it. He got it bird food. He needed to heal someone and he got to do that with the
bird. The bird eventually flew off on his own. And for a short time at least, it reminded Gibbs that
he was still needed.

Franks however went home to an angry Tish. Tish found out that Franks was investigating
her sexual assault from years ago. She told him to drop it because she wanted to move on and he
refused to do that. He claimed he was getting her justice when really he was looking for revenge.

He was even using Vera’s new profiling program to try and find the man. And so Tish had to
issue him an ultimatum tonight that he either respects her wishes or he gets out.
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Sick as Our Secrets

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday December 02, 2024
Writer: Stephen Day, Daniel J. Egbert
Director: Ed Ornelas
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Bobby Moynihan (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Michael
Harney (Kowalski), Daniel Bellomy (Special Agent Granville Dawson),
Jonah Wharton (Father Bobby), Ely Henry (NIS Junior Chemist Philip
Elertson), Emily Tremaine Fernandez (Junie Randolf), Jared Bankens
(Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd), Sari Sanchez (Estela Dominguez), Bryana Sol
Zamora (Gabriela Dominguez), Summer Spiro (Officer Laura Boynton),
Eric Normington (NIS Special Agent Roger Murphy), Marisa Baram
(Gail Price), Joanna Strapp (Nancy), Giovannie Espiritu (Dee), Jesse
Boone (Joshua Adams), Bamm Ericsen (Near-Coherent Guy), An-
drea Cañizares-Fernandez (Silent Woman), Taylor C. Hill (Man #1),
Sylvestre Sly Maldonado (Thief #1), Dakota Shapiro (Thief #2)

Summary: Gibbs and the team investigate the case of a Navy priest who was killed
in the confessional booth; Randy shows Gibbs the ropes of working a
protective detail.

Special Agent Bernard Randolf suffered
from PTSD. He would smoke to calm
down. Or at least he used to do until he
had a new baby at home. His new baby
had colic.

Randy didn’t want to make it worse by
bringing in cigarette smoke and so he was
going without cigarettes. He had noth-
ing else to calm him down. He was go-
ing around by pretending to be cheerful
and he knew it wasn’t going to last. He
was going to snap. One way or another.
It probably didn’t help that they caught a

murder case. NCIS was informed that Father John Larkin had been murdered at his church.
The father was a Navy Chaplin. NCIS had to investigate his case like any other soldier. They

learned that the father was giving confessional when he was killed and that there was a missing
priest.

The other priest was Father Bobby. Father Bobby was hiding in the private office saying his
"hail Mary" over and over again. The man also had blood on him. He seemed pretty shaken and
NCIS had to question him in case he saw something or was their culprit. They took Father Bobby
back to their office.

The father calmed down when he away from the crime scene. He apologized for his earlier
behavior. He said he was shaken when he saw Father John in such a condition.

He was also freaking out because he was worried that the killer might have made a mistake.
It was Father Bobby’s turn to be in the box this week. He traded with Father John. The other
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priest was also shot first in the confessional. He tried crawling away when he got shot the second
time and it was the second bullet that killed him.

Meaning the killer never got a good look at Father John’s face. They could have thought they
were aiming at Father Bobby. Which of course worried Father Bobby. NCIS had to give him
protection detail.

Randy signed up for it. He’s been signing up for these kinds of jobs for the past few weeks.
Mary Jo suspected he didn’t want to go home. Franks thought that Randy wanted to be away
from a baby with colic. He assigned Gibbs to go with Randy in case Randy fell asleep on the job.
And assigning Gibbs might have been a mistake.

Gibbs was already all over the place. When he joined Randy in covering for Father Bobby, he
saw Randy go through every scenario and he questioned out loud if Agent Mitchell had done the
same.

Mitchell was the man guarding Gibb’s family when they were all killed. Randy didn’t know
Mitchell for long, but he did see the crime scene. He saw the blood everywhere. It stayed with
him. He blamed himself for what happened and that’s when he first began to spiral. Randy puts
on a good show in front of his coworkers. His wife was the only one that knew he was suffering.

Father Bobby also proved to be right. He was the target all along. The gun used to murder
Father John was used in a convenience store robbery and the clerk was killed. The killer has
now killed two people.

Father Bobby knows who he is and he can’t say. The killer confessed to him during confession.
Father Bobby was tied by the sacramental seal. He couldn’t reveal this man’s name. The killer
was coming after him and he couldn’t even give the feds any information to protect himself. He
either survives or he dies with the secret.

Someone tripped the fire alarm at the motel where NCIS was staying with Father Bobby.
Randy went out to go check. He found someone running away and identified himself as a federal
agent.

The two men got into a scuffle. Randy nearly killed the guy in a chokehold. He finally put the
guy to sleep when Gibbs radio in that someone was trying to break into the priest’s room. Gibbs
arrested the other guy. He and Randy later questioned both men. They saw the feds unloading
stuff and they wanted to rob them. They didn’t know they were feds or that they were guarding
a priest.

They did see the priest though. Father Bobby came out of the room to look at them. He
assured Randy that neither of them was his killer and the two men weren’t armed.

The thieves were transported to the local jail. Franks decided to let the priest stay at the
motel. He sent Randy some backup. Randy needed it after Gibbs left. Gibbs had to leave to put
the thieves in lockup. With Gibbs gone, Randy made a confession to Father Bobby. He admitted
he was assigned protection detail over Gibbs’s family.

Randy ended up passing on it because his son really did have colic at the time. The baby
was keeping them awake at all hours of the day and they were worried that there might be
something seriously wrong with him. Randy had to stay to be with his family. He gave Mitchell
his assignment. Now Mitchell is dead. Gibbs’s family is dead.

Randy has been blaming himself for what happened and its why he takes so many assign-
ments away from home. He couldn’t stand to look at his son. His boy reminded him of everything
he wanted to forget.

Randy struggling to connect with his son had touched Father Bobby. Father Bobby traded
with Father John because he was having an emotional affair with one of his parishioners. He
now blames himself for his fellow priest’s death. He failed that vow and he didn’t want to fail any
others. Only he got a sign from someone in the NCIS office.

It helped make things clear for Father Bobby. He gave up the killer’s name. His name was
Joshua Adams. He was the son of the congregation secretary. Joshua struggles with drugs and
alcohol. And he used his grandfather’s service weapon to rob the convenience store.

Joshua killed two people to get a fix. NCIS even found him in the underground tunnels doing
drugs. There was no saving him. The only good thing that came out of it was Lala got an answer.

She approached Franks earlier. She was hoping to get recommendation letter from Franks.
Lala wants to move up through the ranks of NCIS’s command and leadership. And Franks refused
to sign that letter because he thought Lala was better off in the field than in an office like Vera.
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The same Vera that was questioning Jamison in prison. He goes by Bugs now and he was a
bad guy. He was so bad that Vera shouldn’t have kept their interview a secret.
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Vivo o Muerto

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday December 09, 2024
Writer: Gina Lucita Monreal, Michael J. Ballin, Thomas Aguilar, Rafael

Samano
Director: Loren Yaconelli
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Bobby Moynihan
(Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwa’la),
Antonio Jaramillo (Officer Rogelio Cuevas), Ely Henry (NIS Junior
Chemist Philip Elertson), Grant Anstine (Seaman Nathan Porter),
Christopher Allen (Navy Shore Patrol Officer), Matthew Henerson (NIS
Special Agent Carl Loughlin), Brian Chenoweth (Gus), Jared Bankens
(Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd), George Paez (Pedro Hernandez), Paolo Cesar
(Mauricio), David Caro Levy (Tijuana Police Officer Armando), Santino
Jimenez (Tijuana Cop), Scott Rinker (Father), Zoe Sansanowicz (Navy
Corpsman Dana Rogers), Kimberly Marquez (Emilia / Elise Rios),
Becca Alvarado (Carmen Ibarra), Daniela Cardarelli (Leticia Flores),
Maria De Los Angeles (Marta Serrano), Mark Harmon (Leroy Jethro
Gibbs)

Summary: The case of a missing woman who disappeared after a night of clubbing
with a Navy seaman takes the team to Mexico, where they learn of a
possible connection to Gibbs’ past.

The case of a missing woman who disap-
peared after a night of clubbing with a
Navy seaman takes the team to Mexico,
where they learn of a possible connection
to Gibbs’ past.
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Blue Bayou

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday December 16, 2024
Writer: David J. North, Gina Lucita Monreal, Brendan Fehily
Director: John Terlesky
Show Stars: Austin Stowell (Special Agent Leroy Jethro Gibbs), Kyle Schmid

(Special Agent Mike Franks), Mariel Molino (Special Agent Lala
Dominguez), Tyla Abercrumbie (Officer Mary Jo Sullivan), Diany Ro-
driguez (Special Agent Vera Strickland)

Guest Stars: Caleb Foote (Special Agent Bernard Randolf), Patrick Fischler (SAC
Cliff Wheeler), Tonantzin Carmelo (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la), London Gar-
cia (Ruth), David L. King (Psychologist), Marisa Baram (Gail Price),
Aaron Wilton (NIS Special Agent JJ Henneberry), Michael Shepperd
(Smitty), Eddie Alfano (Bouncer Todd), Mathew Yanagiya (Marine
Sergeant Reggie Davis), Ajax Dontavius (Marine Sergeant McCloud),
Chris Kimball (Marine #1), Johnny Visotcky (MP #1), Greta Sesheta
(Grandmother), Michael Francis Kelly (Older Bagger), Andrew Eakle
(Cowboy #1), Tristan Welsh (Cowboy #2), Mark Harmon (Older Leroy
Gibbs)

Summary: As Leroy Jethro Gibbs prepares for his first Christmas without his
wife and daughter, flashbacks reveal the unlikely journey that led to
his first day on the job as a special agent.

Gibbs killed someone in cold blood. Yeah,
his walk down memory lane got really
dark tonight. He fell apart after his fam-
ily was murdered and the only way he
could heal was killing the man that took
his family away from him. Gibbs hunted
down this killer. He killed him in Mexico.

There was no evidence of his involve-
ment in the crime only the odds were
pretty low that Pedro Hernandez man-
aged to tick off two snipers. Lala knew
instantly when she heard that a sniper
killed Hernandez that Gibbs did it. She

knew it. She also didn’t want to be around Gibbs or Franks anymore. She doesn’t trust them
when they’re together and she didn’t want to be dragged down with them.

Lala was going to put in for a transfer. She told Gibbs about it. He tried to talk her out of it.
The two of them have become friends and he said he couldn’t tell her about what he did.

He didn’t want to put that burden on her, but Lala felt like she couldn’t trust him after learning
the truth. She thought the best thing she could do was put some distance between them. She
was going to do just that when they all came back from their time off. It was the Christmas
holiday season after all. Gibbs didn’t have anywhere else to go. He signed up for night duty at
the office.

Gibbs needed to keep busy. Just six months ago, he was tearing up his apartment to the point
that his landlord kicked him out. He was calling his father when he was sure his father wouldn’t
answer.

Gibbs was just being self-destructive. Gibbs was even sleeping in his truck bed when it started
to rain. His former landlord saw him and she felt so bad for him that she agreed he could move
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back into the apartment. He was never going to get his deposit back. She was going to use that
to fix up the holes he punched in the walls.

Somehow Gibbs ended up befriending his landlord. Her name is Ruth. They did puzzles to-
gether. It kept Gibbs from wallowing until his new friend fed him some tough love.

She knew she was helping him hide from the world and so she cut the strings. She forced
him to go back outside. She made him get a job. He worked as a cashier at the supermarket. He
would come home cranky only it didn’t stop him from putting puzzles together with Ruth. Gibbs
also tried to reach out to Franks. Franks was avoiding him for a while.

Franks was afraid of what Gibbs had to say. Gibbs saw him come into the supermarket with
Tish. He tried to talk to him and that’s when Franks laid out the truth.

He knew Gibbs was contacting him to either push for more information or to confess to what
he did. Franks didn’t want to know either way. He knew ignorance was better off than knowing
the truth. Gibbs still needed someone to talk to. He eventually told Ruth everything. Someone
had robbed Ruth. They got the kids’ license plate and had some beers afterwards.

Ruth didn’t judge Gibbs for killing that man. She helped him see that he could be a great cop.
He has the makings for it and Gibbs realized that as well. Ruth confided in him that she has a
son.

She wasn’t a very good mother to him growing up. Her son now lives in New Orleans. He
doesn’t want anything to do with her. It makes her sad because she’s dying. She waited until
Gibbs came back after graduating from NCIS to tell him. She didn’t want to ruin his chances at
everything and she wanted to wait to tell him until after he had his psych eval.

The last plan got interrupted because Gibbs figured something was wrong. He grilled Ruth.
She told him she was dying and Gibbs went on to fail his psych eval.

He was going to drink his problems away after that when Franks reentered the picture. Franks
was going to get Gibbs out of jail for getting into a fight with two marines. Only Franks didn’t
have to worry. Ruth was there. She bailed out Gibbs. She talked to Franks. She told him that
Gibbs failed the test because of her and that Gibbs needed a second chance.

Ruth was Gibbs’s only friend. She was dying. She didn’t want to leave Gibbs alone in the
world and so she appealed to Franks better nature. It worked. Franks hired Gibbs.

He ignored the psych eval. He ignored the many red flags about Gibbs and that included him
still getting into fights at the bar. Gibbs became an agent. He helped Ruth get back into contact
with her son. She later died that holiday season with her son at her side and Gibbs got that
phone call right after Lala said she was transferring out.

Lala saw that Gibbs was hurting. She put aside her anger with him to be his friend. She asked
him about the phone call and he told her the long story about Ruth.

By the end of the story, Lala changed her mind about transferring somewhere else. She was
going to stick with Franks. She was also going to keep being there for Gibbs while he struggles
with finding himself.

One of the last things Ruth told him was that she was glad to help him find his calling and he
did that when he joined NCIS.
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Actor Appearances

A
Adele Abinante . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Kelly Gibbs); 0102 (Kelly Gibbs); 0104 (Kelly
Gibbs)

Kelly Albanese. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Julie Larsen)

Eddie Alfano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0101 (Bouncer Todd); 0110 (Bouncer Todd)

Christopher Allen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Navy Shore Patrol Officer)

Hannah Alline . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Shana)

Becca Alvarado . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0109 (Carmen Ibarra)

Joe Alvarez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Carlsbad Cop)

Javon Anderson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Marine Staff Sergeant Derek Jones)

Miles Anderson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Mr. Hatcher)

Maria De Los Angeles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Marta Serrano)

Grant Anstine . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Seaman Nathan Porter)

Julian Black Antelope . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
0101 (Doctor Témet Téngalkat); 0102 (Doctor Témet

Téngalkat); 0104 (Doctor Témet Téngalkat); 0105
(Doctor Témet Téngalkat); 0107 (Doctor Témet
Téngalkat)

B
Jared Bankens . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd); 0102 (Jamison ’Bugs’
Boyd); 0108 (Jamison ’Bugs’ Boyd); 0109 (Jami-
son ’Bugs’ Boyd)

Marisa Baram .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
0101 (Gail Price); 0104 (Gail Price); 0107 (Gail Price);

0108 (Gail Price); 0110 (Gail Price)
Daniel Bellomy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0102 (Special Agent Granville Dawson); 0103 (Spe-
cial Agent Granville Dawson); 0104 (Special
Agent Granville Dawson); 0107 (Special Agent
Granville Dawson); 0108 (Special Agent Granville
Dawson)

Trevor Black. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Blonde Man)

Richard Blackmon .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Danny Prado)

Beckett Blomberg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Boy Gibbs)

Jeffrey Boehm.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0107 (NIS Agent Dalton)

Jeannie Bolet. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0101 (Angela Tan); 0105 (Angela Tan)

Jesse Boone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Joshua Adams)

Jeremy Brandt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Navy Commander Brian Glenn)

Freedom Bridgewater . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Sheriff Pete)

C
Andrea Cañizares-Fernandez. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Silent Woman)
Daniela Cardarelli. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Leticia Flores)
Tonantzin Carmelo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .7

0101 (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwa’la); 0103 (Tishmal ’Tish’
Kwá’la); 0104 (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la); 0105
(Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la); 0107 (Tishmal ’Tish’
Kwá’la); 0109 (Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwa’la); 0110
(Tishmal ’Tish’ Kwá’la)

Lincoln A. Castellanos . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Juan the Manager)

Rafael Castillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Black Kenny)

Paolo Cesar . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0109 (Mauricio)

Brian Chenoweth . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Gus)

Hahn Cho. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Doctor Lin)

John Churchill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Deputy Sheriff Robert Morris)

Jeremiah Clarke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Bouncer)

Joe Corzo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (MP #1)

Shireen Crutchfield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Reporter #3)

Vanessa Curry. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Hostess)

D
Patrick Day . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Kirk)
Teddy Day . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Friend)
Jonima Diaby . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Connor)
Sully Diaz. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0101 (Maria Perez); 0102 (Maria Perez)
Lucas Dixon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Younger Tobias Fornell)
Ajax Dontavius . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Marine Sergeant McCloud)
Ashley Dulaney. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Jessica Maloney)

E
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Andrew Eakle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Cowboy #1)

Bamm Ericsen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Near-Coherent Guy)

Giovannie Espiritu . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Dee)

F
Emily Tremaine Fernandez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Junie Randolf)
Patrick Fischler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

0101 (SAC Cliff Wheeler); 0102 (SAC Cliff Wheeler);
0104 (SAC Cliff Wheeler); 0105 (SAC Cliff Wheeler);
0106 (SAC Cliff Wheeler); 0108 (SAC Cliff Wheeler);
0110 (SAC Cliff Wheeler)

Michael Fitzgerald. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Rookie Officer)

Caleb Foote . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
0101 (Special Agent Bernard Randolf); 0102 (Spe-

cial Agent Bernard Randolf); 0103 (Special Agent
Bernard Randolf); 0104 (Special Agent Bernard
Randolf); 0105 (Special Agent Bernard Ran-
dolf); 0106 (Special Agent Bernard Randolf);
0107 (Special Agent Bernard Randolf); 0108
(Special Agent Bernard Randolf); 0109 (Spe-
cial Agent Bernard Randolf); 0110 (Special Agent
Bernard Randolf)

Ross Francis. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Williams)

Jonathan R. Freeman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Baker)

G
London Garcia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Ruth)
Phillip Garcia. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Spencer ’Lefty’ Hollis)
Rey Goyos . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Reporter #1)
Rueben Grundy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (NIS Agent #1)
Christopher Guyton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (George Ely)

H
Mark Harmon .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Narrator); 0109 (Leroy Jethro Gibbs); 0110
(Older Leroy Gibbs)

Michael Harney . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0102 (Kowalski); 0103 (Kowalski); 0105 (Kowalski);

0108 (Kowalski)
Matthew Henerson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0101 (Carl); 0104 (Carl Loughlin); 0106 (Carl Lough-
lin); 0107 (Carl Loughlin); 0109 (NIS Special
Agent Carl Loughlin)

Ely Henry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
0103 (NIS Junior Chemist Philip Elertson); 0104

(NIS Junior Chemist Philip Elertson); 0108 (NIS
Junior Chemist Philip Elertson); 0109 (NIS Ju-
nior Chemist Philip Elertson)

Taylor C. Hill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Man #1)

Hattie Hoskins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Mildred Jones)

J

Antonio Jaramillo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Officer Rogelio Cuevas)

Santino Jimenez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Tijuana Cop)

DaJuan Johnson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (FBI Detective Noah Oakley)

Erika T. Johnson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0107 (Maxine)

Ted Jonas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Lead FBI Agent)

K
William Kaffenberger. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Poker Player with Bolo Tie)
Michael Francis Kelly . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Older Bagger)
Chris Kimball. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Marine #1)
David L. King . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Psychologist)

L
Betzaida Landín. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0102 (Melanie Hewitt)
Larry Leong. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Tent Guy)
David Caro Levy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Tijuana Police Officer Armando)
Micah Linderman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Marine 1)
Colton Little . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Samuel Rhodes)

M
Sylvestre Sly Maldonado. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Thief #1)
Zachary Margulies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Navy Petty Ofiicer Third Class Walt Lewis)
Kimberly Marquez. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Emilia / Elise Rios)
Jesse Medeles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Arturo)
Richie Merritt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Emmett Sawyer)
Claire Montgomery. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Alice Glenn)
Betsy Moore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Sarah Walsh)
Bobby Moynihan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

0101 (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne); 0102 (Woodrow
’Woody’ Browne); 0103 (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne);
0104 (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne); 0106 (Woodrow
’Woody’ Browne); 0108 (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne);
0109 (Woodrow ’Woody’ Browne)

Sam Myerson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Matt)

N
Tim Neff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (U.S. Marshal #1)
Eric Normington . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0101 (Roger); 0106 (Roger); 0107 (Roger); 0108 (NIS
Special Agent Roger Murphy)

P
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George Paez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Pedro Hernandez)

Lori Petty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
0101 (Dr. Lenora Friedman); 0106 (Dr. Lenora Fried-

man); 0107 (Dr. Lenora Friedman)

R
Jordyn Rax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Girlfriend)
Amanda Rea. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Attendant)
Christopher Redman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Albert Hope)
Scott Rinker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Father)
Ektor Rivera . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Eddie)
Daniel Roebuck . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Artie); 0102 (Artie)

S
Juan Sanchez-Molina. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Officer #1)
Sari Sanchez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Estela Dominguez)
Zoe Sansanowicz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Navy Corpsman Dana Rogers)
Ross Scharphorn. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (NIS Agent #1)
Dani J. Scott . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0101 (Shannon Gibbs); 0102 (Shannon Gibbs); 0103
(Shannon Gibbs)

Greta Sesheta . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Grandmother)

Brent Sexton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Jim Miller)

Dakota Shapiro . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Thief #2)

Michael Shepperd . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0101 (Smitty); 0110 (Smitty)

Derek Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Staff Sergeant Kevin Maloney)

Summer Spiro. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0108 (Officer Laura Boynton)

Joanna Strapp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Nancy)

T
Dollar Tan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Sam)
Robert Taylor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3

0102 (Jackson Gibbs); 0103 (Jackson Gibbs); 0105
(Jackson Gibbs)

Cheryl Tsai . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Reporter #2)

V
Bries Vannon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Drifter 1)
Johnny Visotcky . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (MP #1)

W

Vincent Washington. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0106 (Hodge)

Tristan Welsh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0110 (Cowboy #2)

Jonah Wharton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0108 (Father Bobby)

Ben Whitehair . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0101 (Billy)

Aaron Wilton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0101 (JJ); 0106 (JJ); 0107 (JJ); 0110 (NIS Special

Agent JJ Henneberry)
Raechel Wong . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Nadine Taylor)

Y
Mathew Yanagiya . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Marine Sergeant Reggie Davis)
Makela Yepez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Angel)
Greg Yoder. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Execution Team Leader)

Z
Bryana Sol Zamora . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Gabriela Dominguez)
Robb Zbacnik . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Marine Captain Robinson)
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